Frequently Asked Questions
FY26 FC 0726: Early Literacy Consortium Grant
*UPDATED JUNE 12,2025
Please refer to the slide deck for the Information Sessions on this grant for information about:
· The grant’s purpose
· The timeline of applying and receiving funds
· Logistical considerations for those who may want to apply

Q: How do we access the application in GEM$?
A: If your EPP or district does not already have a login, please check out: https://mass.egrantsmanagement.com/. You can also email or call the GEM$ support contacts at (781) 338-6595 or EdGrants@mass.gov.  Once logged in, search for the fund code: 0726. 

Q: We are thinking of using the funds to [purchase HQIM, hire a vendor for professional development, hire teacher candidates as tutors, host a convening, provide supervising practitioners with stipends, etc]… Is this allowable?
A: As long as it aligns with the three goals and fund use categories in the RFP, then it is allowable. The only exceptions are: out-of-state travel, food, current transportation costs or other currently funded costs, or any expenditures not directly related to grant activities

Q: If we won’t get grant funds until September, is it possible to start work in the summer? Or do we have to wait?
A: It will depend on when your application is approved. If awarded, grant activities from the approval date through June 30, 2026 will be covered by the grant.

Q: Is it possible for summer PD to be paid for through this grant for the summer of 2026?
A: Unfortunately, the FY26 iteration of this grant does not allow districts to carryover funds though the summer. The team at DESE will consider this barrier to your consortium’s programming if the grant program continues in FY27. 

Q: We have adopted [ELA K-2 Program] as our district’s early literacy curriculum. Is it considered HQIM?
A:  In the RFP, we define HQIM as early literacy curricular materials that are rated "Partially Meets Expectations" or "Meets Expectations" on CURATE at the time of application or rated "Green" on EdReports.  Additionally, if the district’s core instructional materials do not include a foundational skills component, but does meet the criterion listed above, evidence-based foundational skills curricular materials must be in use in as well.
Follow Up Q: The curriculum that our district has adopted is currently under review by CURATE. Are we eligible to apply for the grant?
A: No. Unfortunately, the district's curricular materials must be rated "Partially Meets Expectations" or "Meets Expectations" on CURATE at the time of application.
Q: We have adopted [screener] as our district’s early literacy screening assessment. Would we be eligible for the grant?
A:  As long as the screener is rated "Partially Meets Expectations" or "Meets Expectations" on CURATE at the time of application or rated "Green" on EdReports, then it is accepted. Additionally, the district’s core instructional materials must meet the criteria for HQIM. 

Q: The RFP states that the consortium has to commit to meeting with DESE regularly. Who would need to participate in these meetings?
A: The point person for the grant would need to commit to meeting with DESE staff throughout the school year. Other representatives from the consortium are welcome as well!

Q: How should Educator Preparation Providers (EPPs) approach the process of finding districts who are well-positioned to support teacher candidates in learning about evidence-based early literacy?
A: There is not a specific DESE webpage or resource that can directly support EPPs in finding partner districts that are the “right fit.” However, here are some considerations that EPPs are able to take into account when choosing schools that they may want to bring into their consortium:
1. Will including the district strengthen existing partner schools and districts where many of the EPP’s teacher candidates are placed for field-based experiences?
2. Will including the school/district allow for the EPP to better meet the expectations outlined in the FBE and PAR domains of the Early Literacy Program Approval Criteria?
3. Does the partner district already use HQIM for early literacy instruction?
a. More information about what districts are using for curricular materials can be found on DESE’s District Profiles Page. Click on the district that you are thinking of including in your partnership. Click on the side tab that says “Curriculum Data” to learn more about the materials the district is currently using. 
4. Has the partner district already engaged in work to improve evidence-based early literacy instruction?
a. Does the school’s improvement plan include efforts to advance evidence-based early literacy?
b. Has the school engaged in grants such as GLEAM that aim to support improvement of evidence-based early literacy?
c. Does the school plan to apply for PRISM grants in the upcoming school years? 

Q: How should districts go about finding EPPs that could potentially partner with them in advancing evidence-based early literacy?
A: If your district does not have an established partnership with an EPP, you can use Edwin Report EP903: Educator Preparation Partnership Pipeline (P3) to learn more about the candidates who student teach in your district, their preparation programs, and connected hiring data. The report may help districts identify EPPs currently preparing student teachers and/or new hires in your district. There may be opportunities to expand on and strengthen partnerships with these providers, and therefore impact teachers’ preparation in evidence-based early literacy.
Follow Up Q: Are we allowed to partner with EPPs that are not geographically close?
A: Yes, but carefully consider the impact this may have on grant activities. The grant is designed to support programming that is mutually beneficial to pre-service and in-service educators as well as higher education faculty and personnel. Be clear in your consortium’s design and vision to ensure that geographical distance will not negatively impact outcomes for any of the parties involved. 

Q: How should consortia think about the sustainability of these funds? Will the grant be available in the future?
A: DESE hopes to be able to offer this grant through FY29, pending funding. 
Follow up Q: If the grant will be available, should we include information about our consortium’s future plans in our application? 
A: If your consortium has a strategic plan for improving literacy education that extends beyond the next school year, please include it in your application! It will help demonstrate commitment to the priorities of the grant, illuminate how this upcoming year’s plans will build to something greater, and show that all partners in the consortium have come together to create a shared vision. 

Q: We were awarded the consortium grant last year. Do we have to reapply with all of the same partners as last year?
A: No. Consortia that were awarded the grant in FY24 or FY25 can reapply, but it is not necessary for the consortia to have all partner schools, districts, and educator preparation providers still represented. Part of the impetus for making this a competitive grant for all applicants (including those awarded in the past) was to allow consortia to self-reflect on whether or not partners were a “good fit” and all working toward the same goal.
Follow Up Q: We were awarded the Early Literacy Consortium Grant in 2025. For 2026, are we allowed to add a new partner to our consortium? Or do we have to stick with the partners we had last year?
A: Yes, we encourage consortia to expand and add districts/ EPPs. In your proposal, note how any new partners will be onboarded/ thoughtfully brought into the work of your consortium.

Q: Our sponsoring organization has an established partnership with one district, and we plan to meet with an another EPP and their established district partner over the summer to make sure we are all on the same page before launching an early literacy initiative this fall. Do we apply as a category 1 applicant or a category 2 applicant?
A: The primary difference between the different categories is fund use. 
· Category 1: funds are used to make connections with other districts/EPPs and create strategic plans
· Category 2: funds are used to implement strategic plans and launch programming
· Category 3: funds are used to sustain and/or expand existing programs 
If grant funds are being used to operationalize your consortium’s plan to advance evidence-based early literacy and launch programming, then you can apply as a Category 2 applicant. 

Q: We applied as a Category 1 applicant last year. Do we have to apply as a Category 2 applicant this year?
A: No, the applicant categories are not necessarily linear. If your consortium’s work in year 1 went beyond visioning and your partnership established programming that it hopes to continue next year, apply as a category 3. If your consortium applied as a Category 1 Applicant last year, but due to the delayed award your partners need additional time/funding to establish a mission, apply as a Category 1 applicant again. 

Q: Category 3 applicants are eligible for $100,000 - $200,000. How is the award amount determined?
A: The greatest factor in determining the award amount for Category 3 applicants will be the number of EPPs and districts involved in your consortium. 
Q: Can we include community based organizations in our consortium?
A:  Yes – as long as the organization is contributing to the goals of the Early Literacy Consortium Grant. In your proposal, clearly describe the organization’s role in your partnership and how the grant funds will be used to mutually benefit all parties and advance evidence-based early literacy instruction. 
Q: There is a school in our district that has a strong partnership with an EPP and they are already applying for this grant. Does that mean that my school is not eligible to apply with the EPP that we work most closely with?
A: Having a second consortium within your district is ok - you will just have to be strategic about who is officially applying as the representative for your consortium in GEM$. However, it may help advance the work/ promote cohesion within your district if you were to combine forces and create one consortium. 
Q: Our district is/was a recipient of [insert DESE grant program, such as GLEAM, the Early Grades Literacy Grant, RTAP, PRISM]. Does that mean that we are not eligible for this grant program?
A: Districts that have been or are currently recipients of other grants are welcome to apply - participation in another grant program does not positively/negatively affect eligibility for this grant. It may provide useful context in your application to provide details about the district’s participation in the other grant program that make it clear how the district’s goals for participation in the Early Literacy Consortium Grant are distinct and/or build off the work happening as a result of other grant programs. 

